
 

       
 

 
Gloucester Road    Tewkesbury   Glos   GL20 5TT   Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021   

Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk    Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk 

3 November 2023 
 

Committee Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing 
Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005) 

Date Monday, 13 November 2023 

Time of Meeting 10:30 am 

Venue Tewkesbury Borough Council Offices, 
Severn 

 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE ARE 
REQUESTED TO ATTEND 

 

Agenda 

 

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIR  
   
 To elect a Chairman for the ensuing meeting    
   
2.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  
   
 When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by 

the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to 
the visitors’ car park at the front of the building and await further 
instructions (during office hours staff should proceed to their usual 
assembly point; outside of office hours proceed to the visitors’ car park). 
Please do not re-enter the building unless instructed to do so.  
 
In the event of a fire any person with a disability should be assisted in 
leaving the building.     

 

   
3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   
 Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 24 January 2023 of the 

Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 
February 2023, as set out in Minute No. CL.72, Members are invited to 
declare any interest they may have in the business set out on the 
Agenda to which the approved Code applies. 

 

  
 

 

mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk


 Item Page(s) 

 

 2 

4.  PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION REF: 23/01625/LIQPRM - 35 
CHURCH ROAD, BISHOPS CLEEVE, CHELTENHAM, 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE, GL52 8LP 

1 - 47 

   
 To determine an application for a premises licence for 35 Church Road, 

Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP.  
 

   
 

COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Councillors: S Hands, G M Porter and R J E Vines 

Reserve: P A Godwin 

 
Substitution Arrangements 
 
The Council has a substitution procedure and, in respect of this Sub-Committee, should a 
Councillor be unable to attend the meeting, a substitute will be selected from the parent Licensing 
Committee. 
 
Recording of Meetings  
 
In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be 
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded and this may include recording of 
persons seated in the public gallery or speaking at the meeting. Please notify the Democratic 
Services Officer if you have any objections to this practice and the Chair will take reasonable 
steps to ensure that any request not to be recorded is complied with.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, Officers, 
the public and press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or additional lighting will 
not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in advance of the meeting.  
 



TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee (Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005) 

Date of Meeting: 13 November 2023 

Subject: Premises Licence Application Ref: 23/01625/LIQPRM - 35 
Church Road, Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham, 
Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP 

Report of: Licensing Officer 

Head of Service/Director: Director: Communities 

Lead Member: Lead Member for Clean and Green Environment 

Number of Appendices: Seven 

 
 

Executive Summary: 

An application has been received for a premises licence for 35 Church Road, Bishops 
Cleeve, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP. No representations were received from 
responsible authorities, although conditions were agreed with the Police and Environmental 
Health. Three representations were received from ‘other persons’ and, as such, the matter is 
being referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for determination. 

Recommendation: 

To DETERMINE the application by: 

• granting the application as applied for; 

• granting the application but with modification to times or conditions, 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; or 

• rejecting all or part of the application. 

 

Financial Implications: 

There are no financial implications arising directly from the consideration of this application. 
However, any appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the refusal of the application or 
against the imposition of conditions could result in the Council having to bear the legal costs 
of defending its decision. 

Legal Implications: 

As outlined in the report. 

Environmental and Sustainability Implications:  

None. 

 
 
 

1

Agenda Item 4



Resource Implications (including impact on equalities): 

If any party to the hearing were successful in appealing any decision taken by the Sub-
Committee at a Magistrates Court, the Licensing Authority may be liable to having costs 
awarded against it. 

Safeguarding Implications: 

None. 

Impact on the Customer: 

None. 

 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND 

1.1 35 Church Street is a premises located on Church Road in Bishops Cleeve. The 
Applicant intends for the ground floor of the premises to trade as a wine bar/restaurant. 

1.2  

 

The applicant has applied for the following activities: 

• The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises from 12:00 to 
21:30 Monday to Thursday, 10:00 to 22:30 Friday and Saturday, 12:00 to 19:30 
Sunday 

• The performance of recorded music indoors from 12:00 to 22:00 Monday to 
Thursday, 10:00 to 23:00 Friday and Saturday, 12:00 to 20:00 Sunday 

• Opening hours from 12:00 to 22:00 Monday to Thursday, 10:00 to 23:00 Friday 
and Saturday, 12:00 to 20:00 Sunday 

1.3 These hours include the reduction by the applicant, from the initial application, of the 
sale by retail of alcohol end time by 30 minutes on each day, to allow for a drinking up 
time. 

1.4 The initial application included an external seating area to the side of the premises 
which the applicant has since removed from the application. An updated plan has been 
provided. 

1.5 

 

The applicant has confirmed their intention to provide an external seating area at the 
front of the premises. 

1.6 A copy of the application is attached at Appendix A. 

1.7 A location plan is attached at Appendix B. 

1.8 A copy of the original plan submitted with the application is attached at Appendix C. 

1.9 A copy of the updated plan of the premises is attached at Appendix D. 

1.10 The applicant has provided comments in response to representations received. This is 
attached at Appendix E. 

 

 

2



2.0 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES  

2.1 This application was subject to the statutory 28 days consultation with responsible 
authorities and other persons.  In addition to Tewkesbury Borough Council as the 
Licensing Authority, a full copy of the application was sent to the following responsible 
authorities identified in the Act as statutory consultees. Their responses to the 
consultation, if any, are also shown: 

2.2 Environmental Health Authority 

 Conditions agreed: 

o No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted 
through the structure of the premises that gives rise to a nuisance. 

o There must be no deliveries or collections relating to licensable activities at 
the premises between the hours of 2000 hours and 0800 hours on any day. 

o There must be no emptying of recycling (including bottle bins) or waste bins 
between the hours of 2000 hours and 0800 hours on any day. 

o The Premises Licence Holder must ensure that all external doors and 
windows are closed when regulated entertainment is taking place internally, 
except to allow entry and egress. 

2.3 Chief Officer of Police 

 Conditions agreed: 

o The premises will operate and enforce a Challenge 25 policy where all 
persons who appear to be under the age of 25 will be challenged for 
acceptable identification to prove they are over 18 prior to the purchase of 
alcohol. The only acceptable forms of identification will be a valid photo 
driving licence, valid passport or a valid PASS approved proof of age card.  

o Challenge 25 posters will be displayed at the entrance to the premises, all 
areas where alcohol is displayed and at the cash till payment area. The 
posters will be displayed prominently and in the sight of customers and 
staff.  

o A CCTV system with a minimum of 3 cameras will be in operation and 
recording when the premises is open and licensable activities are taking 
place. Recorded images shall be retained for a minimum period of 28 days 
(14 days for digital systems). The CCTV system shall be maintained in good 
working order. CCTV images will be provided to the police and other 
responsible authorities if requested as soon as practicable.  

o The correct time and date will be generated onto both the recording and the 
real time image screen 

o Any person left in charge of the premises must be trained in the use of any 
such CCTV equipment, and be able to produce CCTV images to an officer 
from a responsible authority upon request. 

o Where appropriate, prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed 
at all exits requesting the public respect the needs of local residents and to 
leave the premises and area quietly.  

 

 

 

3



o The Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) or other suitably competent 
person will undertake a risk assessment on an event-by-event basis at 
times when the premises is being used for hire or events. The risk 
assessment will identify if SIA door supervisors are required and if deemed 
necessary the rate employed shall be 1 per 50 of occupancy (or part 
thereof) and subject to a minimum of 2 door supervisors.  

o Non-alcoholic/Low-alcohol drinks shall be promoted especially to 
'designated drivers' of groups. 

o A log shall be kept at the premises to record all refused sales of alcohol for 
reasons that the person(s) is, or appears to be, under 18 years of age. The 
log shall record the date and time of the refusal and the name of the 
member of staff who refused the sale. The DPS will sign and date the book 
each time it is checked. The book shall be made available for inspection 
upon the request of a duly authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or 
Police. 

o An incident log will be kept which will include the date, time and details of 
incident that has taken place. The DPS shall check the book once a month 
ensuring that it is up to date. The DPS will sign and date the book each time 
it is checked. The book shall be made available for inspection upon the 
request of a duly authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or Police. 

o The DPS shall ensure that all Staff concerned in the sale of alcohol are 
trained in their responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003, particularly 
concerning drunk sales, underage sales and proxy sales. Training will 
include challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of 
age and to refuse service where individuals cannot produce acceptable 
means of identification and using the refusal register. Such training 
(including any refresher training) will be logged and provided not less than 
every six months. The training log shall be made available for inspection by 
Police and “authorised persons” immediately upon request. 

2.4 Fire and Rescue Authority – No comment made.  

2.5 Health and Safety Enforcing Authority – No comment made.  

2.6 Planning Authority – No comment made. 

2.7 Body with responsibility for child protection – No comment made.  

2.8 Public Health Authority – No comment made.  

2.9 Trading Standards – No comment made.  

2.10 Home Office Immigration Enforcement – No comment made. 

3.0 OTHER PERSONS 

3.1 In addition to responsible authorities, the Act permits any ‘other person’ to make a 
representation if it is relevant to the application and relates to one or more of the 
licensing objectives. These are: 

• Prevention of crime and disorder 

• Public safety 

• Prevention of public nuisance 

• Protection of children from harm 

4



3.2 

 

Three representations were received from ‘other persons’ in relation to the application. 
These are reproduced at Appendix F. 

4.0 MEETING PROCEDURE 

4.1 A copy of the meeting procedures is attached at Appendix G. 

5.0 GUIDANCE AND POLICY 

5.1 Statutory guidance 

5.1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 states that, in carrying out its functions, a Licensing Authority 
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of 
the Act. The guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent; 
however, it is recognised that each case must be decided on its own merits and the 
guidance should not fetter the discretion of the Licensing Authority to make decisions 
in individual cases. Any decision that the Licensing Authority makes should be 
supported by full reasons.  

5.1.2 The following extracts from the guidance are relevant to this application. 

5.2 Licence conditions – general principles 

5.2.1 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting 
the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such 
as “must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions: 

• must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

• must be precise and enforceable; 

• must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

• should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or 
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation; 

• must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned; 

• should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be 
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case; 

• should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation; 

• should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met; 

• cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the 
direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the 
behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they 
enter or leave; and 

• should be written in a prescriptive format. 

 

 

 

 

 

5



5.3 Each application on its own merits 

5.3.1 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the 
Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy; for example, if the application falls 
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and 
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no 
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may 
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in an individual case. 

5.3.2 

 

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the 
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives 
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed 
areas. A responsible authority or ‘other person’ may choose to rely on their written 
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the 
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and 
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits. 

5.3.3 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 
weight to: 

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 
parties; 

• this Guidance; and 

• its own statement of licensing policy. 

5.4 Public nuisance 

5.4.1 

 

 

 

 

 

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate 
to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 
premises certificates. It is therefore important that, in considering the promotion of this 
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, 
light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 

5.4.2 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is, 
however, not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law 
meaning. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, the reduction of the living and 
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of the 
licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of 
artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 

 

 

 

 

6



5.4.3 

 

 

 

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control 
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple 
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular 
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. 
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber 
speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate; 
however, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in 
circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable).  

5.4.4 Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be 
tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its 
licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or 
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the community, 
such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase and install 
and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 

5.4.5 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in 
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those 
living in the area of the premises, but the approach of licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities should be one of prevention and, when their powers are 
engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may 
not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and additional 
conditions may be appropriate. 

5.5 Licensing policy 

 General principles 

5.5.1 Every application received by the Licensing Authority will be considered on its own 
individual merits. 

5.5.2 If an application for a premises licence or club premises certificate has been made 
lawfully and there have been no representations from responsible authorities or other 
persons, the Licensing Authority must grant the application, subject only to conditions 
that are consistent with the operating schedule and any relevant mandatory conditions. 

5.5.3 The Licensing Authority will aim to carry out its licensing functions in a way that 
promotes tourism, increases leisure and culture provision and encourages economic 
development within the borough; however the Licensing Authority will also always try 
and balance the needs of the wider community, local community and commercial 
premises, against the needs of those whose quality of life may be adversely affected 
by the carrying on of licensable activities, particularly within residential areas. 

5.5.4 In particular the Licensing Authority will attempt to control any potential negative 
impacts from the carrying on of licensable activities, such as increased crime and 
disorder, anti-social behaviour, noise, nuisance, risks to public safety and harm to 
children. 

5.5.5 The Licensing Authority’s aim is to facilitate well run and managed premises with 
licence holders displaying sensitivity to the impact of the premises on local residents. 

5.5.6 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that licensing law is not the primary mechanism 
for the general control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the 
direct control of the individual, club or business holding the authorisation concerned. 
As a matter of policy, however, the Licensing Authority expects every holder of an 
authorisation to be responsible for minimising the impact of their activities and anti-
social behaviour by their patrons within the immediate surroundings of their premises. 

7



 Representations 

5.5.7 When an application is made for the grant, variation or review of a premises licence or 
club premises certificate, representations about the application can be made by 
responsible authorities or other persons. 

5.5.8 Representations must be made to the Licensing Authority within the statutory period of 
28 days beginning on the day after the relevant application is received by the Licensing 
Authority. Representations must be made in writing. 

5.5.9 Representations can be made either be in support of an application or to express 
objections to an application being granted; however, the Licensing Authority can only 
accept “relevant representations.” A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely 
effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing 
objectives. 

5.5.10 For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they should be confined to 
the subject matter of the variation. 

5.5.11 Whilst the Licensing Authority expects representations to be evidence based, there is 
no requirement for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded 
history of problems at a premises to support their representations, and it is recognised 
that in fact this would not be possible for new applications. 

 Representations from other persons 

5.5.12 Relevant representations about applications can also be made by any ‘other person’, 
regardless of their geographical position in relation to the relevant premises; however 
the Licensing Authority will usually give greater weight to representations that are 
made by people who can demonstrate that they would be directly affected by the 
carrying on of licensable activities at the premises concerned. 

 Conditions on licences and certificates 

5.5.13 Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting 
the parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The Licensing Authority 
will ensure any conditions that are imposed on a premises licence or club premises 
certificate are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives; 

• are precise and enforceable; 

• are unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve; 

• do not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or 
responsibilities placed on the employer by other legislation; 

• are tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises 
and events concerned; 

• are not to be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be 
demonstrated that they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case; 

• do not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation; 

• are proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met, (for example, 
whilst beer glasses may be available in toughened glass, wine glasses may 
not); 

 

8



• do not seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the 
direct management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on 
the behaviour of customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as 
they enter or leave; and 

• are written in a prescriptive format. 

5.5.14 Although the Licensing Authority may use standardised forms of wording in conditions 
to cover commonly arising situations and circumstances, “blanket conditions” will not 
be applied to licences and specific conditions may be drawn up and applied to meet 
local need and circumstances. 

6.0 DECISION  

6.1 Representations  

6.1.1 Three representations were received during the consultation process. Members should 
take into account the following comments in relation to the representations: 

6.2 Determination 

6.2.1 In determining the application, the Sub-Committee must have regard to the statutory 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State, the Council’s adopted policy statement, the 
representations made and the evidence it hears. In particular, the Sub-Committee 
must seek to promote the four licensing objectives, which are: 

• The prevention of crime and disorder 

• The prevention of public nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm 

• Public safety 

6.2.2 The Sub-Committee, having regard to all of the above, must take such steps as it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives which can include: 

• granting the application as applied for; 

• granting the application but with modification to times or conditions, appropriate 
to promote the licensing objectives; or 

• rejecting all or part of the application. 

6.3 Each application on its own merits  

6.3.1 Members are reminded that each application must be considered on its own merits 
and in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy.   

Furthermore, conditions attached to licences must be tailored to the individual type, 
location and characteristics of the premises and events concerned. This is essential to 
avoid the imposition of disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on 
premises where there is no need for such conditions. 

 

 

 

 

 

9



6.4 Licensing and planning  

6.4.1 Paragraph 14.64-65 of the Statutory Guidance, that the sub-committee must have 
regard to, states in relation to the relationship with planning and licensing: 

“The planning and licensing regimes involve consideration of different (albeit related) 
matters. Licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by a planning 
committee, and vice versa. 

“There are circumstances when, as a condition of planning permission, a terminal hour 
has been set for the use of premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are 
different to the licensing hours, the applicant must observe the earlier closing time. 
Premises operating in breach of their planning permission would be liable to 
prosecution under planning law. Proper integration should be assured by licensing 
committees, where appropriate, providing regular reports to the planning committee.” 

6.4.2 The planning authority have not made any comments in relation to this application. 

6.4.3 There have been comments made in relation to business needs, access and traffic.  
These concerns are not relevant under the licensing process and would relate to 
planning.  Therefore, these should not be considered when making a decision. 

6.5 Live Music Act 2012/Deregulation Act 2015 

6.5.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a result of deregulatory changes that have amended the 2003 Act, no licence is 
required for the following activities: 

Live music: no licence permission is required for:  

• a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 
on any premises 

• a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 

• any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

7.0 CONSULTATION  

7.1 A 28-day consultation was carried out in accordance with the regulations. 

8.0 ASSOCIATED RISKS 

8.1 None. 

9.0 MONITORING 

9.1 If the application is granted a varied premises licence – incorporating any conditions 
that have been determined to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives – will be issued. If the application is refused, the applicant and all interested 
parties will be notified of the decision in writing. 

9.2 In either case, the applicant and all interested parties will be provided with details of 
their right to appeal against the decision. 

10



10.0 RELEVANT COUNCIL PLAN PRIORITIES/COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES 

10.1 Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement 

10.2 Statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 
2003 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: Licensing Act 2003 

 Tewkesbury Borough Council’s Licensing Act 2003 Policy Statement 

 Statutory guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 

 
Contact Officer:  Licensing Officer 
 john.griffiths@tewkesbury.gov.uk   
 
Appendices:  Appendix A – Copy of application 
 Appendix B – Location plan  
 Appendix C – Copy of original plan of the premises 
 Appendix D – Copy of updated plan of the Premises 
 Appendix E – Applicant comments in response to representations 
 Appendix F – Copies of representations from ‘other persons’ 
 Appendix G – Meeting procedures 
  
   

11

https://tewkesbury.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/Licences%20and%20permits/Licences%20and%20permits/Licensing%20Act%202003%20-%20statement%20of%20licensing%20policy,%20Dec%202022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1125660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_December_2022.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1125660/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_December_2022.pdf
mailto:john.griffiths@tewkesbury.gov.uk


Appendix A

12



13



Appendix A

14



Appendix A

15



Appendix A

16



Appendix A

17



Appendix A

18



Appendix A

19



Appendix A

20



Appendix A

21



Appendix A

22



Appendix A

23



Appendix A

24



Appendix A

25



26



Appendix A

27



Appendix A

28



Appendix A

29



30



Appendix A

31



Appendix A

32



Appendix A

33



Appendix A

34



Google Maps (Satellite) – 2023. 

Google Street View – March 2023. 

Appendix B

35



Appendix C

36



Appendix D

37



Representations made relating to the application for a premises licence: 35 Church 

Road, Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP 

1 – 

I am writing to make representations concerning the above application for a new premises 

licence at 35 Church Road, Bishop’s Cleeve. 

My wife and I live at [REDACTED], and we object to the application for a variety of reasons: 

Our Responses are in Red. 

Bishops Cleeve Italian restaurant is the 6th Italian restaurant that our tenant has set up. All 

of them are still running and very successful. 

This business model is to create a quality family restaurant that integrate the community. 

The quality food is the focus of the restaurant accompanied by moderate amounts of wine, 

beer, and spirits. 

The quality can be shown by the fact his Solihull restaurant won the young Michelin chef of 

the year award 2022. We feel this is exactly what is needed to help regenerate the high 

street in Bishops Cleeve. 

1  Public safety 

1.1 It is our understanding that the proposed restaurant intends to have outside seating 

(where the outside paving has already been removed and replaced and external 

lighting has been installed without planning permission).  The proposed outside 

seating area is at the entrance to a quiet residential street (Church Approach) which 

is also the road entrance to the village church (and a busy thoroughfare connecting 

the north and south of the village via a public footpath).  Serving alcohol to people 

sat outside of the premises is likely to result in: the obstruction of the drop down kerb 

adjacent to the premises; patrons of the premises obstructing Church Approach 

(which may impact on the ability for emergency vehicles to access Church 

Approach); and the fire escape for the flats that have been built on top of the 

premises being obstructed. – The seating will be directly outside the building at the 

front, there will be no seating down the side alley. This is out the way of Church 

Road approach. We have taken the necessary precautions regarding fire safety with 

building control.  

1.2  Permitting the sale of alcohol will encourage beverage deliveries to be made along 

an already congested road.  With the premises not having a rear entrance, deliveries 

will either block Church Approach or they will cause an obstruction on the blind bend 

on Church Road where the premises is situated (which also happens to be directly 

opposite the vehicular access to the Tesco car park). - Beverages and food will be 

delivered at the same time using vans not HGVs. The vans can use numerous 

spaces near 35 Church Road, including 4 directly outside the property. Tenant is 

happy to restrict deliveries between hours of 12PM and 5PM. 

1.3  The Royal Oak is the only licensed premises in the vicinity.  Although it has a 

premises licence permitting the sale of alcohol and playing of music, its outside 

seating area is to the rear of the premises (away from residential areas) and its 

patrons are confined to that one establishment.  Permitting a second venue in the 

vicinity that serves alcohol (not to mention the playing of music) will encourage 

people to move between the two venues, crossing Church Road at a dangerous 

Appendix E

38



bend and junction. - We feel that the customer base is significantly different, to a pub. 

The restaurant is catering for a glass of wine or beer with a meal rather than being a 

dedicated drinking venue. There is a zebra crossing that is located approximately 

50m on the same road which will enable people to cross between the two properties 

safely. 

2          Prevention of public nuisance 

2.1       Serving alcohol to people sat outside of the premises risks obstructing the public in 

the enjoyment of their right to walk along Church Approach in the manner currently 

enjoyed, not to mention restricting the width of the pavement (which the public has 

used for many years without obstruction when walking along Church Road).  The 

village already has a problem with young people smoking and drinking in public 

areas (particularly in the church yard), and allowing alcohol to be served outside in 

view of the public at the entrance to the church would be seen as an endorsement of 

public drinking. - This Italian restaurant will be a high quality, establishment, where 

people can expect to have a glass of wine, it will not be a pub environment. A strict 

and clear age verification/restriction policy will be detailed within staff training 

program. 

2.2       If permitted to serve alcohol outside, I question how the proprietor will ensure that 

patrons remain within a confined, designated area and prevent the obstruction of the 

public pavement. – This area will be seated customers only, people will not be 

standing and walking around with drinks.  

2.3       The east end of Church Road is the quieter, more residential part of the street.  The 

playing of music, particularly to the extent of the hours proposed, risks adding to the 

noise pollution already endured by the local residents from The Fitness Studio at The 

Old Sorting Office.  It would be inappropriate to put the local residents (many of 

whom are elderly) in a potential position of to having to confront the proprietor of the 

premises to ask them to reduce the volume of the music if it did cause a 

nuisance.  Restrictions requiring the proprietor to keep windows and doors closed to 

reduce the effect of noise on the surrounding premises would not be appropriate, as 

people will need to enter and leave the premises and it is highly likely (particularly 

given the nature of restaurant dining) that windows and doors will be kept open 

during summer months for ventilation. - This Italian restaurant will be a high quality, 

establishment, where people can expect to have a glass of wine, it will not be a pub 

environment. Recorded background music volume will be kept well within acceptable 

levels at all times. 

2.4       Extending the point made in paragraph 2.3, the east end of Church Road is almost 

silent after 6pm as almost all of the businesses in the area are closed by that 

time.  Encouraging the consumption of alcohol at this location, together with the 

playing of music, will fundamentally disrupt the aesthetic of the area.  It would be 

more appropriate to confine such a business to the west end of Church Road, where 

similar businesses have congregated. - The Royal Oak is open till 11PM, and as 

previously mentioned recorded background music volume will be kept well within 

acceptable levels at all times. 

2.5       Extending the point made in paragraph 1.3, having two venues that are permitted to 

serve alcohol and play music that are in close proximity to one another will 

encourage people to be outside, moving between the venues, in a part of the village 

Appendix E

39



that is known for being quiet (in terms of pedestrian traffic) at night and is essentially 

a residential area. - Please refer to our response to this in point 1.3. 

 

3          Prevention of crime and disorder 

3.1       I refer to paragraph 2.1 regarding the encouragement of public drinking in an area 

already subject to anti-social behaviour caused by, amongst other matters, underage 

alcohol consumption. - The application is for the sale of Alcohol for a restaurant, not 

a bar or public house. The restaurant brings a much-needed high quality venue and 

will concentrate on food excellence rather than alcohol volume. 

4          The protection of children from harm 

4.1       I refer to paragraph 2.1 regarding the encouragement of public drinking in an area 

already subject to anti-social behaviour caused by, amongst other matters, underage 

alcohol consumption.  It is also not unreasonable to assume that if people are sitting 

outside to eat and drink alcohol, it is likely that they will also be smoking/vaping (and 

any attempted restrictions on such behaviour would be difficult to enforce, and I 

question whether the proprietor would so discourage their patrons from such 

behaviour and risk losing their custom). – Refer to our response on 2.1  

4.2       As mentioned in paragraph 1.1, Church Approach is the entrance to the main north-

south public footpath that runs through the church yard.  Pupils from nearby Bishop’s 

Cleeve Primary Academy, not to mention Cleeve School, regularly use that route to 

walk to and from school in significant numbers.  It is not appropriate for them to have 

to pass an establishment serving alcohol, particularly to people outside, not to 

mention passing people smoking/vaping. - The Church Approach is not the main 

route in and out of Cleeve, there are other Establishments that sell alcohol that the 

children from the local school’s pass, including the Royal Oak directly opposite. A 

strict and clear age verification/restriction policy will be detailed within staff training 

program. 

Even if a licence is granted with restrictions and conditions designed to place limits on noise 

levels and how alcohol is served, the fact that a licence is granted will set an unwelcome 

precedent for the premises and the area.  The current proprietor of the premises may adhere 

to such restrictions and conditions, but the door would be left open for an unscrupulous 

proprietor to exploit such a licence to the detriment of the residents of Church Road and 

Church Approach, not to mention the numerous residents of the village as a whole who 

regularly use the area.  Relying on enforcement action would not be an adequate remedy for 

those effected, as they would remain exposed to the infringing actions while waiting for the 

process to be concluded. - The application is for the sale of Alcohol for a restaurant, not a 

bar or public house. The restaurant brings a much-needed high quality venue and will 

concentrate on food excellence rather than alcohol volume. 

The appropriate course of action is not to grant the licence in the first place. 

2 –  

Introduction:- 
 
The original planning application for the building, on the ground floor, was for 3 retail units 
with the restriction that NO FOOD would be allowed. 
After rejection by Tewkesbury council it was approved by Gloucester Council. 

Appendix E

40



We now have a proposed restaurant which wants an alcohol licence to also include 
drinking in an outside area. 
 
 
 
Objections:- 
 

A) No account has been taken that this outside area is in front of domestic premises 
which are within a few feet of the proposed area. 
Indeed no part of the licence application asks for the applicant to consider others in 
the area? No notification has been given to close neighbours of this application as 
required? - The Proposed seating area faces the Royal Oak and the approach to 
Tesco Car Park. We, the applicant have followed all the steps set up by Tewkesbury 
Borough Council, regarding this premises licence. Including advertising the license in 
the local newspaper (Gloucester echo and Citizen) & displayed the relevant notices 
on the property which the public can easily view. 

 
B) The proposed outside seating area for eating and drinking is insufficient to allow for 

flats entrance, tables and chairs for eating plus emergency evacuation. 
Before fire service approval we would request that the proposed seating area is 
actually stacked with the chairs and tables to test if the remaining space is sufficient 
to cover flats entrance etc - The seating area to the side of the building has been 
removed. 

 
C) With the proposed opening hours we have invasion of our privacy from viewing, have 

to suffer noise, smell and music for up to 15 hours per day. All from a very short 
distance away approx 15 feet. - All noise will be kept within an acceptable level. The 

D) nearest property is 50feet away. 
 

E) If we have to accept approval it is requested that The Fri/Sat opening is reduced to 
the other 5 days opening time of 12noon. 
Also, that the Fri/Sat closing time is reduced to 10pm. By drinking up time and 
premises closure are completed we are probably nearer 11 pm before noiseless. - 
We have set hours appropriate to location and setting. 

 
F) To reduce viewing of our premises and the general passing public, including the 

morning and afternoon infant and junior school children it is proposed that:- 
The current railings are covered. This would be beneficial to both drinkers and 
passing public. - The railings are existing and will remain unchanged, as previously 
mentioned the seating area to the side has been omitted from the application. 

 
G) Conservation Area 

Whilst we have been informed this is not within the remit of licensing we believe that 
it should be considered. 
The short road length is as its name suggests an 'approach to the Church' 
Do weddings parties and particularly funeral and burial attendees wish to be 
accosted by noise, music, smell and drinking. - 35 Church Road is not within the 
conservation area, which is not relevant to licensing applications. 

 
H) Licensed Area 

It is requested that you give consideration to the Licensed area being restricted to 
consumption within the indoor restaurant area. This would solve most of the 
objections from both the public and ourselves. 

We trust that the above points are taken into your consideration of this licence application. 

Appendix E

41



As mentioned in a previous point, the outside seating will face the Royal Oak and the 

approach to Tesco car park, minimising the impact on nearby residential properties. The 

external area is limited, and the restaurant will be serving seated customers this will 

minimise noise and movement. 

 

3 - Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Council 

The Councillors have asked me to say that whilst they support the premises licence 

application for the restaurant itself, they have concerns about extending the licence to the 

outside areas indicated on the plan. 

- Although the plan states that there would be a 0.6m wide walkway for access and 

egress to the flats, they dispute this measurement.  The current walkway is approximately 

1m wide, and the addition of outside seating and /or tables would basically fill this space. 

They believe this would contravene fire regulations and affect the safety of the residents who 

will occupy the flats above. – The seating at the side of the building has been omitted from 

this application.  

- It is unclear if the applicants wish to place seating outside the front of the premises.  

Again, the Councillors are concerned that this would affect public safety as it would severely 

reduce the public footpath in an area that leads directly to a drop-down kerb for push chairs, 

wheelchairs and mobility scooters. – With the seating at the front of the building, we will 

obtain an unobstructed minimum 1.5m walkway for pedestrians at all times.  

- The Councillors also believe that having patrons outside of the building potentially 

consuming alcohol and smoking would cause a public nuisance to pedestrians and nearby 

residents, particularly given the long licensing hours that have been requested by the 

applicants.- - The application is for the sale of Alcohol for a restaurant, not a bar or public 

house. The restaurant brings a much-needed high quality venue and will concentrate on 

food excellence rather than alcohol volume. 

 

Appendix E

42



Representations made relating to the application for a premises licence: 35 Church 
Road, Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP 

1 –  

I am writing to make representations concerning the above application for a new premises 
licence at 35 Church Road, Bishop’s Cleeve. 

My wife and I live at [REDACTED], and we object to the application for a variety of reasons: 

1          Public safety 

1.1       It is our understanding that the proposed restaurant intends to have outside seating 
(where the outside paving has already been removed and replaced and external 
lighting has been installed without planning permission).  The proposed outside 
seating area is at the entrance to a quiet residential street (Church Approach) which 
is also the road entrance to the village church (and a busy thoroughfare connecting 
the north and south of the village via a public footpath).  Serving alcohol to people sat 
outside of the premises is likely to result in: the obstruction of the drop down kerb 
adjacent to the premises; patrons of the premises obstructing Church Approach 
(which may impact on the ability for emergency vehicles to access Church 
Approach); and the fire escape for the flats that have been built on top of the 
premises being obstructed. 

1.2       Permitting the sale of alcohol will encourage beverage deliveries to be made along 
an already congested road.  With the premises not having a rear entrance, deliveries 
will either block Church Approach or they will cause an obstruction on the blind bend 
on Church Road where the premises is situated (which also happens to be directly 
opposite the vehicular access to the Tesco car park). 

1.3       The Royal Oak is the only licensed premises in the vicinity.  Although it has a 
premises licence permitting the sale of alcohol and playing of music, its outside 
seating area is to the rear of the premises (away from residential areas) and its 
patrons are confined to that one establishment.  Permitting a second venue in the 
vicinity that serves alcohol (not to mention the playing of music) will encourage 
people to move between the two venues, crossing Church Road at a dangerous 
bend and junction. 

2          Prevention of public nuisance 

2.1       Serving alcohol to people sat outside of the premises risks obstructing the public in 
the enjoyment of their right to walk along Church Approach in the manner currently 
enjoyed, not to mention restricting the width of the pavement (which the public has 
used for many years without obstruction when walking along Church Road).  The 
village already has a problem with young people smoking and drinking in public 
areas (particularly in the church yard), and allowing alcohol to be served outside in 
view of the public at the entrance to the church would be seen as an endorsement of 
public drinking. 

2.2       If permitted to serve alcohol outside, I question how the proprietor will ensure that 
patrons remain within a confined, designated area and prevent the obstruction of the 
public pavement. 

 

Appendix F

43



2.3       The east end of Church Road is the quieter, more residential part of the street.  The 
playing of music, particularly to the extent of the hours proposed, risks adding to the 
noise pollution already endured by the local residents from The Fitness Studio at The 
Old Sorting Office.  It would be inappropriate to put the local residents (many of 
whom are elderly) in a potential position of to having to confront the proprietor of the 
premises to ask them to reduce the volume of the music if it did cause a 
nuisance.  Restrictions requiring the proprietor to keep windows and doors closed to 
reduce the effect of noise on the surrounding premises would not be appropriate, as 
people will need to enter and leave the premises and it is highly likely (particularly 
given the nature of restaurant dining) that windows and doors will be kept open 
during summer months for ventilation. 

2.4       Extending the point made in paragraph 2.3, the east end of Church Road is almost 
silent after 6pm as almost all of the businesses in the area are closed by that 
time.  Encouraging the consumption of alcohol at this location, together with the 
playing of music, will fundamentally disrupt the aesthetic of the area.  It would be 
more appropriate to confine such a business to the west end of Church Road, where 
similar businesses have congregated. 

2.5       Extending the point made in paragraph 1.3, having two venues that are permitted to 
serve alcohol and play music that are in close proximity to one another will 
encourage people to be outside, moving between the venues, in a part of the village 
that is known for being quiet (in terms of pedestrian traffic) at night and is essentially 
a residential area. 

3          Prevention of crime and disorder 

3.1       I refer to paragraph 2.1 regarding the encouragement of public drinking in an area 
already subject to anti-social behaviour caused by, amongst other matters, underage 
alcohol consumption. 

4          The protection of children from harm 

4.1       I refer to paragraph 2.1 regarding the encouragement of public drinking in an area 
already subject to anti-social behaviour caused by, amongst other matters, underage 
alcohol consumption.  It is also not unreasonable to assume that if people are sitting 
outside to eat and drink alcohol, it is likely that they will also be smoking/vaping (and 
any attempted restrictions on such behaviour would be difficult to enforce, and I 
question whether the proprietor would so discourage their patrons from such 
behaviour and risk losing their custom). 

4.2       As mentioned in paragraph 1.1, Church Approach is the entrance to the main north-
south public footpath that runs through the church yard.  Pupils from nearby Bishop’s 
Cleeve Primary Academy, not to mention Cleeve School, regularly use that route to 
walk to and from school in significant numbers.  It is not appropriate for them to have 
to pass an establishment serving alcohol, particularly to people outside, not to 
mention passing people smoking/vaping. 

Even if a licence is granted with restrictions and conditions designed to place limits on noise 
levels and how alcohol is served, the fact that a licence is granted will set an unwelcome 
precedent for the premises and the area.  The current proprietor of the premises may adhere 
to such restrictions and conditions, but the door would be left open for an unscrupulous 
proprietor to exploit such a licence to the detriment of the residents of Church Road and 
Church Approach, not to mention the numerous residents of the village as a whole who 

Appendix F

44



regularly use the area.  Relying on enforcement action would not be an adequate remedy for 
those effected, as they would remain exposed to the infringing actions while waiting for the 
process to be concluded. 

The appropriate course of action is not to grant the licence in the first place. 

2 –  

Introduction:- 
 
The original planning application for the building, on the ground floor, was for 3 retail units 
with the restriction that NO FOOD would be allowed. 
After rejection by Tewkesbury council it was approved by Gloucester Council. 
We now have a proposed restaurant which wants an alcohol licence to also include 
drinking in an outside area. 
 
Objections:- 
 

A) No account has been taken that this outside area is in front of domestic premises 
which are within a few feet of the proposed area. 
Indeed no part of the licence application asks for the applicant to consider others in 
the area? No notification has been given to close neighbours of this application as 
required? 

 
B) The proposed outside seating area for eating and drinking is insufficient to allow for 

flats entrance, tables and chairs for eating plus emergency evacuation. 
Before fire service approval we would request that the proposed seating area is 
actually stacked with the chairs and tables to test if the remaining space is sufficient 
to cover flats entrance etc 

 
C) With the proposed opening hours we have invasion of our privacy from viewing, have 

to suffer noise, smell and music for up to 15 hours per day. All from a very short 
distance away approx 15 feet. 

 
D) If we have to accept approval it is requested that The Fri/Sat opening is reduced to 

the other 5 days opening time of 12noon. 
Also, that the Fri/Sat closing time is reduced to 10pm. By drinking up time and 
premises closure are completed we are probably nearer 11 pm before noiseless. 

 
E) To reduce viewing of our premises and the general passing public, including the 

morning and afternoon infant and junior school children it is proposed that:- 
The current railings are covered. This would be beneficial to both drinkers and 
passing public. 

 
F) Conservation Area 

Whilst we have been informed this is not within the remit of licensing we believe that 
it should be considered. 
The short road length is as its name suggests an 'approach to the Church' 
Do weddings parties and particularly funeral and burial attendees wish to be 
accosted by noise, music, smell and drinking. 

 
G) Licensed Area 

It is requested that you give consideration to the Licensed area being restricted to 
consumption within the indoor restaurant area. This would solve most of the 
objections from both the public and ourselves. 

Appendix F

45



We trust that the above points are taken into your consideration of this licence application. 

3 - Bishop’s Cleeve Parish Council 

The Councillors have asked me to say that whilst they support the premises licence 
application for the restaurant itself, they have concerns about extending the licence to the 
outside areas indicated on the plan. 

- Although the plan states that there would be a 0.6m wide walkway for access and 
egress to the flats, they dispute this measurement.  The current walkway is approximately 
1m wide, and the addition of outside seating and /or tables would basically fill this space. 
They believe this would contravene fire regulations and affect the safety of the residents who 
will occupy the flats above. 

- It is unclear if the applicants wish to place seating outside the front of the premises.  
Again, the Councillors are concerned that this would affect public safety as it would severely 
reduce the public footpath in an area that leads directly to a drop-down kerb for push chairs, 
wheelchairs and mobility scooters. 

- The Councillors also believe that having patrons outside of the building potentially 
consuming alcohol and smoking would cause a public nuisance to pedestrians and nearby 
residents, particularly given the long licensing hours that have been requested by the 
applicants. 

Appendix F

46



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 AND GAMBLING ACT 
2005) 

• All parties present will be asked to identify themselves.

• Licensing Officer will open the proceedings with an outline of the relevant
facts.

• Sub-Committee and other parties to ask questions of the Officer and any
witnesses called by the Officer.

• Any Responsible Authorities present will be invited to present their case.

• Members and other parties may ask questions of the Responsible Authorities.

• Other parties present will be invited to make representations.

• The Sub-Committee, relevant authorities and/or the applicant may ask
questions of the other parties.

• The applicant will be invited to present his/her case including any witnesses.

• Sub-Committee and all other parties present may ask questions.

• Any written representations made to the Sub-Committee will be considered.

• Final comments will be invited from the Officer, Responsible Authorities and
other parties.

• The applicant will be invited to make any final comments.

• The Sub-Committee will determine the application.

NB.   The Sub-Committee may impose a time limit on all parties making a 
 submission.  Should this be the case, the time limit will be equal for all parties. 

Appendix G

47


	Agenda
	4 Premises Licence Application Ref: 23/01625/LIQPRM - 35 Church Road, Bishops Cleeve, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52 8LP
	Appendix A - Copy of application
	Appendix B - Location map
	Appendix C - Original Plan of Premises
	Appendix D - Updated Plan of premises
	Appendix E - Applicant comments in response to representations
	Appendix F - Representations
	Appendix G - Hearing procedure




